


PRITHIVI EXCHANGE (INDIA) LIMITED

’

1

2
3-9
10-42
43-47
47-50
51
52
53
54-71
72-73



PRITHIVI EXCHANGE (INDIA) LIMITED

Dear shareholders,

It gives me great pleasure to address you in this Silver Jubilee Year of the Company. I am
thprivileged to welcome you all at this 24 Annual General Meeting of Prithvi Exchange India

Limited.

I am happy to share that the business of Prithvi Exchange India Limited experienced a rapid
growth over the last years. We believe that it's time for us to focus on scaling up all t h e
business verticals profitably and to open new branches.

Today, we are one of the leading players in this business of Foreign Exchange. Thanks to our
customers.They have helped us grow to what we are today by giving their huge s u p p o r t
and having continued faith in us. We have 16 branches all over the country and a wide
network. We will endeavor to make every branch as profit centers.

I am happy to announce that plans are afloat to expand our presence in New Delhi and Pune.
Also, we have plans to boost our network to more centers across India and abroad.

st“Prithvi” registered a total income of Rs.10.95 Crores for the year ended 31 March 2019
thagainst the previous year figure of 9.68 crores. This year marks the 24 successful year of the

company. Also this year we have reached another milestone viz public turnover
crossing 1000 crores. Our relentless focus on quality of services and our commitment to o u r
customers and integrity have brought us to this stage.

Your company continues to win new accolades. During the calendar year 2018 Prithvi
Exchange (India) Limited was recognized and named The Best Foreign Exchange Service
Provider 2018 at the Tourism and Hospitality Award 2018 organized by The Associated
Chambers of Commerce &amp; Industry of India (ASSOCHAM).

We believe that our progress has and always will depend on the efforts and endeavors of our
people. I would like to acknowledge their contribution to the Company's progress this far and
extend my heartfelt gratitude to them. On behalf of the Board, I would also like to
thank our shareholders, clients, business partners, financial institutions and regulators f o r
their continued support.

We look forward to your good support.

Thank you

Chairman
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PRITHIVI EXCHANGE (INDIA) LIMITED

NOTICE TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

thNotice is hereby given that the 24 Annual General Meeting of the company will be held on 
thWednesday, 25 day of September,2019 at 11. 30A.M.at Hotel Ashoka,47, Pantheon Rd,

Egmore, Chennai, Tamil Nadu 600008 for transacting the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet of the Company as on 
31stMarch 2019, the Profit and Loss Account for the year ended on that date and 
the Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon

2. To appoint Mr. Suresh Kumar (DIN: 06691575), director who is retiring by rotation
and being eligible offers himself for reappointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

3. Reappointment of Mr. K.N Deenadayalan (DIN: 02910246) as an Independent
Director of the Company for a second term of five consecutive years , in terms of
Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013.:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as a special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149 and 152 read with
Schedule IV and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force) and
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as
amended from time to time, Mr. K.N Deenadayalan (DIN: 02910246), who was
appointed as an Independent Director of the Company for a term of five years up to

thSeptember27, 2019, by the members at the 19 Annual General Meeting, in terms of
Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013, be and is hereby re-appointed as an
Independent Director of the Company for a second term of five consecutive years
commencing from September 27, 2019 up to September 27, 2024, not liable to
retire by rotation.”

                                                      For and on behalf of the Board 

                                                           Pavan Kumar Kavad
                                                           Whole Time Director

DIN: 07095542

Place: Chennai

Date: 10– 08 -2019

 Sd/-
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PRITHIVI EXCHANGE (INDIA) LIMITED

NOTES:-

1. The information required to be provided as per section 102 of Companies Act, 2013,
secretarial standard - 2 on General Meetings issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of 
India and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, are
furnished in the explanatory statement which is annexed hereto.

2. Any member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint a proxy to attend and vote
instead of himself. The proxy need not be a member of the company. The instrument of proxy
should however be deposited at the registered office of the company not less than 48 hours before
the time fixed for the commencement of the meeting.

3. A person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate
not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A
member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting
rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a proxy for any other
person or Corporate members intending to send their authorised representative(s) to attend the
Meeting are requested to send to the Company a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing
their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.

4. The Statement of material facts pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect
of the Special Business as given in the notice is annexed here to

5. The Register of Members of the Company will remain closed from September 14, 2019 to
September 25, 2019 (both days inclusive) for annual closing.

6. Pursuant to Section 124 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, all unclaimed dividends shall be
transferred to the 'Investor Education and Protection Fund' of the Central Government after a
period of 7 years from the date of declaration. Shareholders who have not encashed the dividend
warrants for the years 2011-2012 to 2017-18 are requested to write to the Registrar and Share
Transfer Agents of the Company, M/s. Integrated Registry Management Services Private Limited,
2nd Floor, Kences Towers, No.1 Ramakrishnan Street, North Usman Road, T-Nagar, Chennai – 600
017 Tel : 044-28140801/02/03 for claiming the dividend

st7. Dividend declared in the year 2011-12 for the financial year ending as on 31 March 2012 and
remaining unclaimed will be transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund after
conclusion of this Annual General.

8. The Notice of the AGM along with the Attendance Slip and Proxy Form, is being sent by electronic
mode to all members whose email addresses are registered with the Company / Depository
Participant(s) unless a member has requested for a hard copy of the same. For members who have
not registered their email addresses, physical copies of the aforesaid documents are being sent by
the permitted mode. We encourage your participation and request your support in this regard. To
receive communications from the Company in electronic form, please register your e-mail address
with your Depository Participant(s) / Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA) or write to us.

9. Members may also note that the notice of the Annual General Meeting and the Annual Report
2019 will be available on the Company's Website: www.prithvifx.com.

10. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to notify to the Company immediately of
any change in their residential and e-mail address to the Registrar and Transfer Agents:
Integrated Registry Management Service Private Limited,2nd Floor, Kences Towers, No.1,
Ramakrishnan Street, North Usman Road, T-Nagar, Chennai – 600 017.Tel:044-28140801/02/03.
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PRITHIVI EXCHANGE (INDIA) LIMITED

11. Members holding shares in dematerialized form may inform the change in their residential and e-
mail address to their Depository Participants.

12. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent
Account Number (PAN) and Bank account details by every participant in securities market.
Accordingly, members holding shares in electronic form are requested to submit their PAN to their
DP with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical
form are required to submit their PAN and Bank account details to Company in terms of SEBI
Circular dated 20th April, 2018.

13. Institutional Members/Corporate Members (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) intending to
send their authorised representatives to attend annual general meeting are requested to submit
before the commencement of annual general meeting a duly certified copy of their board
resolution.

14. Members holding shares in electronic form may please note that their bank details as furnished 
by the respective depositories to the Company will be printed on the dividend warrants as per 
the applicable regulations of the depositories and the Company will not entertain any direct 
request from such member for change/deletion in such bank details. Members may therefore 
give instructions regarding bank accounts to their respective depository participants only.

15. The Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 permits Companies to send soft copies of the annual report to all those
shareholders who have registered their e-mail address with the Company/depository participants.
To support this green initiative, the shareholders holding shares both in physical/ demat form are
requested to register/update their e-mail address with the Company/depository participants.
Accordingly, the Annual Report for the financial year ended 31st March, 2019, notice for Annual
General Meeting etc, are being sent in electronic mode to those shareholders who have registered
their e-mail address with the Company/ depository participants. For those shareholders who have
not opted for the above, the same are being sent in physical form.

16. Members who are holding shares in identical order of names in more than one account are
requested to intimate to the Company, the ledger folio of such accounts together with the share 
certificate(s) to enable the Company to consolidate all the holdings into one account. The share
certificate {s) will be returned to the members after necessary endorsements.

17. Members/Proxies should bring the attendance slip duly filled in for attending the meeting.

18. All documents referred to in the accompanying notice and the explanatory statement pursuant to
section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 will be available for inspection at the registered office of
the Company during the business hours on all working days up to the date of declaration of results
of the Annual General Meeting of the Company.

19. Brief resume, details of shareholding and Directors inter-se relationship of Directors seeking
election / reelection, as required under Reg. 36 of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Secretarial Standards issued by
the Institute of Company Secretaries of India are provided where ever required.

20. Any member who needs any clarification on accounts or operations of the company shall write 
to the compliance officer which should reach at least 7 days before the meeting, so that the 
information required can be made available at the meeting.
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PRITHIVI EXCHANGE (INDIA) LIMITED

21.E-Voting:

In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended by the Companies (Management and
Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (LODR) 2015, the
Company is pleased to provide members facility to exercise their right to vote on resolutions
proposed to be considered at the AGM by electronic means and the business may be transacted
through e-voting services.

(I) The facility of casting the votes by the members using an electronic voting system from a place
other than venue of the AGM (“remote e-voting”) will be provided by National Securities Depository
Limited (NSDL).

(ii) The facility for voting through ballot paper/polling paper shall be made available at the AGM and
the members attending the meeting who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be able to
exercise their right at the meeting through ballot paper.

(iii) The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend the
AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

(iv) The remote e-voting period commences on 21/09/2019 (9:30 AM) and ends on 24/09/2019
(5:00 PM). During this period members' of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in
dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of 18/09/2019, may cast their vote by remote e-voting.
The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a
resolutions are cast by the members, the members shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

(v) The voting rights of members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share
capital of the Company as on the cut-off date 18/09/2019.

(vi) Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and become member of the Company after
dispatch of the notice and holding shares as on the cut-off date i.e. 18/09/2019, may obtain the 
login ID and password by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in.

(vii) However, if you are already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting then you can use your
existing user ID and password for casting your vote. If you forgot your password, you can reset your
password by “Forgot User Details / Password” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com, or
contact NSDL at the following toll free No: 1800-222-990.

(viii) In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Members and
remote e-voting user manual for Members available at downloads section of www.evoting.nsdl.com
or call on toll free no.: 1800- 222-990.

(ix) You can also update your mobile number and e-mail id in the user profile details of the folio
which may be used for sending future communication (s).

(x) A member may participate in the AGM even after exercising his right to vote through remote e-
voting but shall not be allowed to vote again at the AGM.

(xi) A person, whose name is recorded in the register of beneficial owners maintained by the
depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting as
well as voting at the AGM through ballot paper.

(xii) V. Esaki, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No. 30353), Proprietor of M/s. V. Esaki &
Associates Company Secretaries has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the voting at
the AGM and the remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

(xiii) The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the resolutions on which voting is
to be held, allow voting with the assistance of Scrutinizer, by use of “Polling Paper” for all those
members who are present at the AGM but have not cast their votes by availing the remote e-voting
facility.

(xiv) The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the general meeting, first count the votes
cast.

(xv) The results declared along with the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of
the Company, www.prithvifx.com and on the website of NSDL immediately after the declaration of
result by the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing and communicated to BSE Limited.
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PRITHIVI EXCHANGE (INDIA) LIMITED

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

(Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013)

The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), given
hereunder sets out all material facts relating to the Businesses mentioned at Item no. 3 of the
accompanying Notice:

Item No. 3

Mr. K.N Deenadayalan (DIN: 02910246) was appointed as a Director on the Board of the Company on
21st August 2007. In terms of Section 149 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,

th2013, members of the Company at the 19 Annual General Meeting held on September 27, 2014
approved the appointment of K.N Deenadayalan as an Independent Director of the Company fora
period of 5 years up to September 27, 2019.

As per the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013, an Independent Director shall hold
office for a term upto five consecutive years on the Board of a Company but shall be eligible for re-
appointment, for another term of upto five years, on passing of a special resolution by shareholders.

The Company has received intimation in Form DIR-8 from Mr. K.N Deenadayalan that, he is not
disqualified from being re-appointed as an Independent Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act,
declaration that he meets with the criteria of independence as prescribed under Section 149 (6) of the
Companies Act, 2013 & Regulation 16(1)(b) of SEBI Listing Regulations and his consent to continue
as an Independent Director.

The resolution seeks the approval of members for the re-appointment of Mr. K.N Deenadayalan as an
Independent Director of the Company commencing from September 27, 2019 up to September 27,
2024 in terms of Section 149 and other applicable provisions of the Act and Rules made there under.
He is not liable to retire by rotation.

In the opinion of the Board, Mr. K.N Deenadayalanfulfills the conditions for his re-appointment as an
Independent Director as specified in the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations and is independent of
the management.

Based on the recommendations of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and keeping in view
ththe expertise of Mr. K.N Deenadayalan, the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 10 August, 2019

approved the continuance of office of Mr. K.N Deenadayalan as mentioned in the resolution. It will be
in the best interests of the Company to continue him as a Board member for further period of five
years.

Mr. K.N Deenadayalan does not hold any shares of Prithvi Exchange India Limited. He is not related to
any other Directors/KMPs of the Company. He is not a Member/Chairman of Committees of other
Companies.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and / or their relatives except Mr.
K.N Deenadayalan, to whom there solution relates, is in any way, concerned or interested, financially
or otherwise, in the resolution.

thBoard recommends the resolution set-forth in Item No.3 for approval of the members at the 24
Annual general Meeting, by way of Special Resolution.
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PRITHIVI EXCHANGE (INDIA) LIMITED

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT / RE-APPOINTMENT 
PURSUANT TO REGULATION 36 OF THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS 
AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015) AND 
SECRETARIAL STANDARDS-2.

Name of the Director Mr. SURESH KUMAR

DIN

Father's Name

Date of Birth

Educational Qualification

Experience

Date of Appointment

Directorships in other listed company

Committee Memberships in other listed company

Number of shares held

06691575

DELICHAND

01/06/1958

B.COM

5 Years

22/01/2014

Nil

Nil

0

Name of the Director MR. K.N DEENADAYALAN

DIN

Father's Name

Date of Birth

Educational Qualification

Experience

Date of Appointment

Directorships in other listed company

Committee Memberships in other listed company

Number of shares held

02910246

KUPPUSWAMY NARAYANASWAMY

13/04/1956

B.Sc., CAIIB (Certified Associate of Indian Institute of Bankers)

33 Years

27/09/2014

Nil

Nil

0

For and on behalf of the Board
            Sd/-
Pavan Kumar Kavad
Whole Time Director 
DIN No: 07095542

Place: Chennai
Date:10-08-2019
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PRITHIVI EXCHANGE (INDIA) LIMITED
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PRITHIVI EXCHANGE (INDIA) LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31stMARCH, 2019

Dear Shareholders,

We have pleasure in presenting the 24thAnnual Report and Audited Statements of Accounts of
the Company for the year ended 31stMarch, 2019.

FINANCIAL RESULTS AND STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS

The financial results for the year ended 31stMarch, 2019 are as under:

Rs. (In.Lacs)

Particulars 31.03.2019 31.03.2018

Income

Total Expenses

Profit before depreciation

Depreciation

Profit/(loss) before Tax

Provision for taxation

Profit/(loss) After Tax

1,094

706

406

18

388

144

244

968

671

316

19

297

113

184

STATE OF COMPANY'S AFFAIRS 

Our Company has earned a net profit of INR. 2.44 crores compared to the previous year net profit 
which was INR. 1.84 crores (ie) 33% growth of net profit.

CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL

The Paid up Equity Share Capital as on March 31, 2019 was Rs. 5,49,97,670/- comprising 54,99,767
shares of 10/- each. During the year under review the company has not made any fresh issue of
shares.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND THE DATE OF THE
REPORT

There was no material change or commitment, affecting the financial position of the Company
between the end ofthe financial year of the Company and the date of the report other than those
disclosed in the financial statements.

DIVIDEND

thThe board recommended an interim dividend, on 25 May 2019, of Rs.0.75 Per share exclusive of
dividend tax which will absorb a sum of Rs. 41.25 lakhs.

31.03.2017

952

625

343

16

327

115

212
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PRITHIVI EXCHANGE (INDIA) LIMITED

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION 
FUND

In terms of the Companies Act, 2013 any unclaimed or unpaid Dividend relating to the financial year
2011-12, will be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund established by the Central
Government, after the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting.

TRANSFER TO GENERAL RESERVE

The company has transferred the surplus amount to Reserves & surplus account.

FIXED DEPOSIT

The company has not accepted any fixed deposit during the year.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS

Details of loans given and investment made by the company have been given in notes to the 
Financial Statement.

The company has not given any guarantee / security during the year pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

There was no change in the composition of the Board of Directors of the Company since last 
Annual General Meeting.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Act and the Articles of Association of the
Company, Mr. Suresh Kumar, Director is liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General
Meeting (“AGM”) and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment. Your directors recommend the
re-appointment of Mr. Suresh Kumar.

thKey managerial personnel Ms. Gayathri, resigned from the position of Company Secretary on 10
stAugust 2018 and Mr. Prince Thomas got appointed as Company Secretary on 01 February 2019.

Name of Director Designation

Mr. Deenadayalan Kuppuswamy Narayanaswamy

Mr. Pavan Kumar Kavad

Ms. Anuradha Jayaraman

Mr. Mahavir Chand

Mr. Suresh Kumar

Chairman (Independent Director)

Whole-time Director

Independent Director

Independent Director

Director

Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary

Mr. S P Mahesh

Mr. Prince Thomas
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PRITHIVI EXCHANGE (INDIA) LIMITED

DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

All the Independent Directors of the Company have given their declarations stating that they
meet the criteria of independence as laid down under Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation
16(1)(b) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations 2015 ('the Listing Regulations'). In the opinion of the Board, they fulfil the
conditions of independence as specified in the Act and the Listing Regulations and are independent of
the management..

SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The Company does not have any joint venture, subsidiary or associate company.

BOARD EVALUATION

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 the Board has carried out an evaluation of
its own performance, the directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working of its various
committees. The directors held separate discussions with each of the Directors of the Company and
obtained their feedback on overall board effectiveness as well as each of the other Directors.

A Separate meeting of the independent directors was convened, which reviewed the 
performance of the Board (as a whole),thenon- independent directors and the Chairman Post the 
separate meeting of the Independent Directors, collective feedback of each Independent 
Directors, was discussed by the Chairman of the meeting.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the year 2018-2019, Six (6) Board meetings were held on the following dates:

Date of Meeting No. of Directors entitled 
to attend meeting

No. of Directors attended 
meeting

19-05-2018

10-08-2018

05-10-2018

10-11-2018

05-01-2019

02-02-2019

5

5

5

5

5

5

4

4

3

4

3

4

COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE

The composition of the members of the Committee is as under:

Name of Member Designation
Mr. Deenadayalan Kuppuswamy Narayanaswamy

 Mr. Mahavir Chand
Mr. Pavan Kumar Kavad

Chairman

Member
Member

12

Ms. Anuradha Jayaraman



PRITHIVI EXCHANGE (INDIA) LIMITED

VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has established a vigil mechanism and accordingly framed a Whistle Blower Policy. The
policy enables the employees to report to the management instances of unethical behavior, actual or
suspected fraud or violation of Company's Code of Conduct. Further the mechanism adopted by the
Company encourages the Whistle Blower to report genuine concerns or grievances and provide for
adequate safe guards against victimization of Whistle Blower who avails of such mechanism and also
provides for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee, in exceptional cases. The
functioning of vigil mechanism is reviewed by the Audit Committee from time to time. None of the
Whistle blowers has been denied access to the Audit Committee of the Board. The Whistle Blower Policy
of the Company is available on the website of the Company http:// prithvifx.com/.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE AND POLICY:

The Board on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee framed a policy on
Directors' appointment and remuneration including criteria for determining qualification, positive
attributes, independence of a Director and other matters provided under sub-section (3) of Section
178. The said Policy is available on the website of the Company – http://prithvifx.com/

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT:

Your Company is in compliance with all the applicable provisions of Corporate Governance as
stipulated under Chapter IV of the Listing Regulations. A detailed report on Corporate Governance as
required under the Listing Regulations is provided in a separate section and forms part of the Annual
Report as Annexure E.

STATUTORY AUDITORS

Ms.Diyali B and Associates (Membership number 242354), Chartered Accountants, Chennai, are the
Statutory Auditors of the Company.

There are no qualifications or reservations or remarks made by the auditors in their report.

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014, the Company has appointed
M/s V. Esaki & Associates, a firm of Company Secretaries to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the
Company. The report on the Secretarial Audit carried out for the year 2018-19 is annexed here with as
'Annexure-B' The Secretarial Audit Report is self-explanatory.

COST AUDITORS

The provisions of section 148 of the Act are not applicable to our company.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

There were no significant related party transactions made by the company with related parties which
might have potential conflict with the interest of the company.
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PRITHIVI EXCHANGE (INDIA) LIMITED

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In terms of Section134 (3) (c) read with section134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors, to
the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained by
them, confirm that they had:

i. Followed the applicable accounting standards in the preparation of the financial statements for the
financial year 2018-19 and there are no material departures;

ii. Selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the Company for the year under review;

iii. Taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company, preventing and
detecting fraud and other irregularities and

iv. Prepared the financial statements for the financial year on a 'going concern' basis.

v. Laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and such internal financial 
controls were adequate and were operating effectively.

vi. Devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and 
such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

BUSINESS RISK MANAGEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(n) of the Companies Act 2013. In the opinion of the board there is no risk
that may threaten the existence of the Company. The details of the risk and threat as perceived by the
company on a cautionary basis are annexed in the Management and discussion analysis report.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

The details forming part of the extract of the Annual Return in form MGT-9 is annexed here with 
as 'Annexure-C'.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Section 197 Read with rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules,2014 in respect of employees of the Company is annexed as 'Annexure- D'. Rule 5(2)
of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is not
applicable to our Company.

SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a policy on
prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at workplace in line with the provisions of
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the
rules framed there under. During the financial year 2018-19, the Company has not received any
complaints on sexual harassment.
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OTHER DISCLOSURES

a) The Internal control systems and adequacy are discussed in detail in the Management Discussion
and Analysis annexed to the Directors Report as “Annexure A”

b) The Company has established a formal vigil mechanism named 'Prithvi Whistle Blower Policy' for
reporting improper or unethical practices or actions which are volatile of the code of conduct of the
Company. There was no instance reported during the year under review through this.

PARTICULARS REGARDING CONSERVATION OF ENERGY AND TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND EXPENDITUR

The information on conservation of Energy, Technology absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings
and outgo stipulated under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is NIL.

NO SIGNIFICANT OR MATERIAL ORDERS WERE PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR
COURTS OR TRIBUNALS WHICH IMPACTS THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND
COMPANY'S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

Your directors wish to place on record their appreciation for the continuous support received from
the members, customers, suppliers, various statutory bodies of the Government of India and the
company's employees at all levels.

For and on behalf of the Board
       Sd/-

Pavan Kumar Kavad
Whole Time Director

DIN: 07095542

Place: Chennai
Date: 10-08-2019
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ANNEXURE A

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS SCENARIO

Market Scenario

Our company is one of the pioneers in Foreign Exchange Business and our Company's identity in the
industry is well established.

Opportunities

The board is hopeful of improving financials in the years to come.

Concerns

Competition and recession in the economy are the major threat.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND SYSTEMS

PRITHVI EXCHANGE (INDIA) LIMITED has an adequate system of internal control in place which has
been designed to provide a reasonable assurance with regard to maintaining of proper accounting
controls, monitoring of operations, protecting as set from unauthorized use or losses, compliance with
regulations and for ensuring reliability of financial reporting.

Risk Management Framework

The Company has a Risk Management Framework, which provides the mechanism for risk
assessment and mitigation.

The Risk Management Committee (RMC) of the Company comprises the Chairman, Whole Time
Director and members of senior management. During the year, the RMC reviewed the risks associated
with the business of the Company, its root causes and the efficacy of the measures taken to mitigate the
same. Thereafter, the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors also reviewed the key risks
associated with the business of the Company, the procedures adopted to assess the risks and efficacy of
mitigation measures.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in this Management Discussion and Analysis Report describing the Company's
objectives, projections, estimates and expectations may be forward looking statements' within the
meaning of applicable laws and regulations. Actual results might differ substantially or materially from
those expressed or implied. Important developments that could affect the Company's operations
include significant changes in political and economic condition.

PLEASE NOTE THAT WHEREVER THE NAME OF THE DIRECTOR APPEARS, THE SAME 
BE READ WITH THE DIN OF THE CONCERNED DIRECTORS AS MENTIONED BELOW:

S .N o D IN N a m e  o f th e  D ire cto rs

1

2

3

4

5

0 2 9 1 0 2 4 6

0 7 0 9 5 5 4 2

0 6 6 9 1 5 7 5

0 0 6 7 1 0 4 1

0 0 7 4 7 4 1 9

Mr. Deenadayalan Kuppuswamy Narayanaswamy

M r. P a v an  K u m a r K a va d

M r. D . S u re sh  ku m a r

M r. M a h a v ir  C h a n d

M s. A n u ra d h a  Ja ya ra m a n
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Annexure-B
Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31/03/2019
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members, 
PRITHVI EXCHANGE (INDIA) LIMITED

Chennai

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable Statutory provisions and

the adherence to good corporate practices by M/s. PRITHVI EXCHANGE (INDIA) LIMITED, (CIN:

L30006TN1995PLC031931) (hereinafter called the company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a

manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory

compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the M/s. PRITHVI EXCHANGE (INDIA) LIMITED books, Papers, Minutes

book, forms and Returns filed, records, registers and secretarial and other records maintained by the

company and based on the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized

representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the

company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31/03/2019 complied with

the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has Board-processes and

compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made

hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, Minute Books, Forms and Returns filed and other records

maintained by M/s. PRITHVI EXCHANGE (INDIA) LIMITED for the financial year ended on 31/03/2019

according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under the company has

complied with the procedure laid under the Companies Act, 2013.

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made there under;

17



PRITHIVI EXCHANGE (INDIA) LIMITED

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of

India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'):-

(v) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under.

(vi) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of

India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)

Regulations, 2011.

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2009;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)

Regulations, 1993.

(e) The SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

As informed to me the following other Laws specifically applicable to the Company as under

1.Payment of Wages Act, 1936

2.The Minimum Wages Act, 1948

3.The Employees' Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952

4.Employees' State Insurance Act, 1948

5.Equal Remuneration Act, 1976

6.Shop & Establishment Act, 1948

7.The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972

8.GST Act 2017

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(I) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Bombay Stock Exchange.

We further report that Based on the information provided by the company, its officers and authorised
representatives during the conduct of audit and also on the review of compliance report by respective
department heads as taken on record by the board of directors of the company, in our opinion, there are
adequate systems, processes and control mechanism exists in the company commensurate with the 
size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable general laws like
labour & employment laws and other general laws and, rules, regulations and guidelines made.
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We further report that the compliance of by the company of other applicable laws like direct and indirect
tax laws has not been reviewed in this audit since the same have been subject to review by statutory
financial audit and other designated professional.

We further report that The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in
compliance with the provisions of the Act.

We further report that Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda
and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking
and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

As per the minutes recorded and signed by the chairman, the decision of the board were unanimous and
no dissenting views are captured have recorded as part of the minutes wherever applicable.

We further report that there are systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size
and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period there were no specific events/ actions in pursuance of the
above referred laws, rules, regulation, guidelines, etc, having a major bearing on the Company's affairs

For V. Esaki & Associates
Company Secretaries

    (V.Esaki)
     Proprietor

ACS No. 30353

Place: Chennai

Date: 09/08/2019

Sd/-
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Annexure 'A' to SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

To,

The Members, 
PRITHVI EXCHANGE (INDIA) LIMITED

Chennai

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on the Secretarial Audit.

2.We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done

on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the

processes and practices, We followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

3.We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of

Accounts of the company.

4.Wherever required, We have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of

laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5.The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,

standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of

procedures on test basis.

6.The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of

the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

For V.Esaki & Associates
Company Secretaries

      (V.Esaki)
     Proprietor

 ACS No. 30353

Place: Chennai 

Date: 09/08/2019

Sd/-
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Form No. MGT 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on the financial year ended on 31/03/2019
Of

Prithvi Exchange (India) Limited 
(Formerly known as Prithvi Softech Limited)

(Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the companies Act, 2013 and
Rule 12(1) of the Companies (MGT and Administration) rules, 2014

Annexure-C

I. Registration and other details:

 i CIN : L30006TN1995PLC031931

 ii Registration Date [DDMMYY] 21/06/1995

 iii Name of the Company PRITHVI EXCHANGE (INDIA) LIMITED

 iv Category /Sub-category of the Company 1. Public Company
2. Limited by shares

v Address of the Registered office and contact details
No.11, East Spur Tank Road, Chetpet, Chennai - 600 031, Tamil Nadu
Tel : 044 - 4343 4252 / 4272
e-mail: investor.relations@prithvifx.com Website: www.prithvifx.com

vi Whether listed company Yes /No Yes

vii Name and Address of Registrar & Transfer Agents (RTA):- Full address and contact details to be given.

Registrar & Transfer Agents ( RTA ):- M/s. INTEGRATED REGISTRY MANAGEMENT SERVICES PVT LTD

Address
nd2 Floor, KENCES TOW ERS, No.1, Ramakrishna Street

Off. N orth Usman Road, T.N agar

Town / City CHENNAI

State TAMIL NADU

Pin Code 600 017

Telephone (With STD Area Code Number) 044 - 2814 0801 / 02 / 03

ii Principal businessactivities of the company
(All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated)

sl.no Name and Description of main products / services NIC Code of the Product/ service % to total turnover of the company

Foreign Exchange Business1 67190 92.40
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i) Category-wise Share holding

iii. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES : Nil

iv. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN ( Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of total Equity)

Category of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the 
year[As on 31st march-2018]

No. of Shares held at the end of the 
year[As on 31st-march-2019]

%
Change
during
the
yearDemat Physical Total % of 

Total
Shares

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total
Shares

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

a) Individual/
HUF

3956922 0 3956922 71.95 3956922 0 3956922 71.95 0

total
shareholding
of Promoter
(A)

3956922 0 3956922 71.95 3956922 0 3956922 71.95 0

B. Public
Shareholding
2. Non- institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

i) Indian 24627 7453 32080 0.580 25026 7453 32479 0.590 0.01

b) individuals

i) Individual
shareholders
holding
nominal share
capital up to 
Rs. 1 lakh 400514 255064 655578 11.920 456564 235639 692203 12.590

- 0.670

ii) Individual
shareholders
holding
nominal share
capital in
excess of Rs 1 
lakh 835602 0 835602 15.190 813808 0 813808 14.800

0.390

Clearing 19584 0 19584 0.360 4354 0 4354 0.080 0.280
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Member

TRUST 1 0 1 0.000 1 0 1 0.000 0

SUB TOTAL
B(2) 1280328 262517 1542845 28.050 1299753 243092 1542845 28.050

0

Total Public
Share Holding
(B)=B(1)+B(2) 1280328 262517 1542845 28.050 1299753 243092 1542845 28.050 0

TOTAL (A)+(B)
Shares held by 
Custodians
and against
which
Depository
Receipts have
been issued 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
GRAND TOTAL
(A)+(B)+(C) 5237250 262517 5499767 100.000 5256675 243092 5499767 100.000 -

ii.Shareholding of Promoter

S
N

Shareholder’s
Name

Shareholding at
the beginning of 
the year

Shareholding at the end 
of the year

%
change in 
share

holding
during the 

year

No. of 
Shares

%
oftotal
Shares
of the 

compan
y

% of 
Shares
Pledged

/
encumbe

red to 
total

shares

No. of 
Shares

% oftotal 
Shares of 

the
company

% of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered
to total shares

1 Ashok Kumar Kavad
HUF

981537 17.85 0 981537 17.85 0 0

2 Pavan Kumar Kavad 1988404 36.15 0 1988040 36.15 0 0

3 Usha Kavad 987345 17.95 0 987345 17.95 0 0

Total 3956922 71.95 0 3956922 71.95 0 0

iii. Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change):*

S
N

Shareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative
Shareholding
during the year

No. of shares % of total
shares of the 
company

No. of 
shares

% of total
shares of the 
company

1 Ashok Kumar Kavad
HUF

981537 17.85 981537 17.85

2 Pavan Kumar Kavad 1988040 36.15 1988040 36.15

3 Usha Kavad 987345 17.95 987345 17.95

* There are no changes in the promoter shareholding during the year under review
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iv. Share holding Pattern of top ten Shareholders: ( other than Directors, Promoters and holders of GDRs)

S

No

For Each of the top 10 Shareholders Shareholding at the beginning of the year

No. of shares % of total

shares of the

company

i ANITHA

At the beginning of the year 193181 3.51

Purchase made during the year 0 0

Sales made during the year 0 0

At the end of the year 193181 3.51

ii R. MANOJ KUMAR

At the beginning of the year 190283 3.46

Purchase made during the year 0 0

Sales made during the year 0 0

At the end of the year 190283 3.46

iii N. PRAMODH KUMAR

At the beginning of the year 173935 3.16

Purchase made during the year 0 0

Sales made during the year 0 0

At the end of the year 173935 3.16

iv RITESH KATARIYA

At the beginning of the year 120577 2.19

Purchase made during the year 0 0

Sales made during the year 0 0

At the end of the year 120577 2.19

V AARTHI

At the beginning of the year 76115 1.38

Purchase made during the year 0 0

Sales made during the year 0 0

At the end of the year 76115 1.38

vi J. LATHA

At the beginning of the year 31322 0.57

Purchase made during the year 0

Sales made during the year 13897 0.25

At the end of the year 17425 0.32

vii KAMLABEN ASHOKKUMAR HEMLANI

At the beginning of the year 19137 0.35

Purchase made during the year 2870 0.05

Sales made during the year 2690 0.05

At the end of the year 19317 0.35

viii INDIANIVESH SECURITIES LIMITED

At the beginning of the year 11300 0.21

Purchase made during the year 0 0

Sales made during the year 8800 0.16

At the end of the year 2500 0.05
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ANNEXURE D

DETAILS PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION
197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5 OF THE
COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL
PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

Particular Employer

2. Percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer,
Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year

th* Resigned on 10 August 2018
st** Appointed on 01 February 2019

3. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: (32.73%)

4. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of company

5. Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial
personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial
remuneration and justification thereof Refer point 2 above.

6. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the company Yes

Ratio of the remuneration of each 
director to the median remuneration Column 1 Column 2 Column 3

Director Salary (In Lakhs) Median employee Times

Mr. Pavan Kumar Kavad - 
Whole Time Director

24.00 1.68 13:1

Sl.no Director/KMP Apr-18 (Lakhs/ month) Mar-19(Lakhs/ month) Increase

Mr. Pavan Kumar Kavad 

Mr. S.P Mahesh 

Ms. Gayathri *

Mr. Prince Thomas**

1

2

3

4

2.00 2.00 NIL

1.30 1.45 11%

0.16 0 NA

0 0.45 NA

Colum n1 Em ployees

W hole T im e D irector 1

Com pany Secretary 

O thers

1

134

Chief F inancia l O fficer 1
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7. If employed throughout the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for that year which, in the
aggregate, was not less than sixty lakh rupees NIL

8. If employed throughout the financial year or part thereof, was in receipt of remuneration in that year
which, in the aggregate, or as the case may be, at a rate which, in the aggregate, is in excess of that drawn
by the managing director or whole-time director or manager – Nil

9 Provided that the particulars of employees posted and working in a country outside India, not being 

directors or their relatives, drawing more than Sixty Lac rupees per Financial Year or Five Lac rupees 

per month, as the case may be, as may be decided by the Board, shall not be circulated to the 

members in the Board's report, but such particulars shall be filed with the Registrar of Companies while 

filing the financial statement and Board Reports – Nil

Certificate from Chief Financial Officer

To
The Board of Directors
PRITHVI EXCHANGE (INDIA) LIMITED

Certificate in compliance with Regulation 17 (8) read with Schedule II Part B of the SEBI (Listing Obligation
and Disclosure Requirement) Regulation, 2015, we hereby certify that:

A. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year and that to the best of
our Knowledge and belief:

(1) The statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain
statements that are misleading

(2) The statements together present a true and fair view of the listed entity's affairs and are in compliance
with existing Accounting Standards, applicable Laws and Regulations.

B. We are to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the listed entity during
the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the listed entity's code of conduct.

C. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining Internal controls for financial reporting and
that we have evaluated the effectiveness of Internal control systems of the listed entity pertaining to
financial reporting and we have disclosed to the auditors and the audit committee, deficiencies in the
design or operation of such Internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken to
rectify these deficiencies if any.

D. We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit committee:

(1) Significant changes in Internal control over financial reporting during the year;

(2) Significant changes in Accounting Policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements; and

(3) Instances of significant fraud if any, of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, 
if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the listed entity's Internal 
control system over financial reporting.

     sd/-
S P Mahesh
Chief Financial Officer
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Annexure E

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Company's Philosophy on Code of Corporate Governance:

A. Your Company is committed to follow the best Corporate Governance practices not only to ensure success in
business, but also for maximizing value for all the stakeholders be it Members, investors, clients, employees or
Regulators. The trust of the stakeholders is built by maintaining the highest ethical standards, transparency and
accountability.At 'Prithvi', emphasis is given to four key building blocks – Trust, Transparency, Technology
and Talent. The Directors and Management of your Company continue to be committed to adhering to
the best governance standards and to comply with regulatory requirements in the true sense and
beyond the letter of law.

B. Composition and Category of Directors:

I. As on 31 March 2019, the Company's Board comprised of 5 (Five) Directors of which 3 (three)
are Independent Non- Executive Directors. The Company has complied with the requirement of Woman
Director pursuant to the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act 2013 and Regulation 17 of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. All the directors possess
expertise in the financial services sector. The composition of the Board and category of Directors as on
31 March 2019 is as follows:

The Board has identified the following skill set with reference to its Business and Industry which are
available with the Board:

Name of the Directors DIN Category

Mr. K.N Deenadayalan

Mr. Mahavir Chand

Ms. Anuradha Jayaraman

Mr. Pavan Kumar Kavad

Mr. D. Suresh kumar

02910246

00671041

00747419

07095542

06691575

Independent Non-Executive Director

Independent Non-Executive Director

Independent Non-Executive Director

Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

Name of the Directors Expertise in specific functional area

Mr. K.N Deenadayalan

Mr. Mahavir Chand

Ms. Anuradha Jayaraman

Mr. Pavan Kumar Kavad

Mr. D. Suresh kumar

33 years of Experience in Forex business

4 years of Experience in Forex business

4 years of Experience in Forex business

6 years of Experience in Forex business

5 years of Experience in Forex business
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ii. Attendance of Directors at Board Meetings, last Annual General Meeting (AGM) and number of other Directorships and
Chairmanships / Memberships of Committees of each Director in various companies as on 31 March 2019:

Notes:

Number of Board Meetings held during the financial year 2018-19: 6 (Six)

In accordance with Regulation 26 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
Memberships/Chairmanships of only Audit Committees and Stakeholders' Relationship Committee in all public limited
companies (excluding Prithvi Exchange India Limited) have been considered.

The meetings of the Board of Directors and the above committees have been conducted in the manner as specified in 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Companies Act, 2013.

As required under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018, there is a
requirement to mention separately the names of the listed entities where the person is a director and the category of such
directorship.

I. Number of Board Meetings held with dates:

During the financial year 2018-19, 6 (Six) Board Meetings were held and the details of Board Meetings held are given below:

Name of 

the Director

No of Board 
Meetings which 
Director was
entitled to attend

Attendance at meetings
during 2018-19

Board
Meetings

Last AGM 
held on 17th
September
2018.

No. of other 

Directorship

No. of Committee 
Membership(s)/
No. of Chairmanship(s) 
of Board Committees 
in other Listed Companies

List of Directorship 
held in Other Listed 
Companies and 
Category of Directorship

Mr. K.N Deenadayalan

Mr. Mahavir Chand

Ms. Anuradha

Jayaraman

Mr. Pavan

Kumar Kavad

Mr. D. Suresh 

kumar

6

6

6

6

6

5 1 NIL

4 - 1

2 - 3

6 1 NIL

NIL5 1

NIL NIL

NIL NIL

NIL NIL

NIL NIL

NIL NIL

Date of Board Meeting Board Strength Number of Directors Present % of attendance

19-05-2018

10-08-2018

05-10-2018

10-11-2018
05-01-2019

02-02-2019

5

5

5

5
5

5

4

4

3

4
3

4

80%

80%

60%

80%
60%

80%
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 iv. Details of Shares/Convertible Instruments held by the Directors

v. Code of Conduct of the Board

The Board of Directors of the Company meets regularly to discuss the operational and financial
performance of the Company. The Board periodically reviews the compliance reports pertaining to all
laws applicable to the Company as well as takes steps to rectify instances of non-compliances, if any.

The Board has constituted the Nomination and Remuneration Committee to satisfy itself that plans
are in place for orderly succession for appointment to the Board of Directors and senior management.
The Board of Directors has laid down a code of conduct for all the Members of the Board and senior
management.

The Independent Directors are made aware of their duties and responsibilities and their
performance is evaluated by the entire Board apart from the Director who is subject to evaluation.

vi. Independent Directors

During the Financial Year 2018-19, the Company had three Independent Directors, Mr. K.N
Deenadayalan, Mr. Mahavir Chand and Ms. Anuradha Jayaraman. The Company has received declarations
from the Independent Directors of the Company confirming that they meet with the criteria of
independence as prescribed both under sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Regulation 16 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The Company has conducted familiarization programme for its Independent Directors to make them
aware of the nature of the industry and their roles, rights, responsibilities. The details of the
familiarization programme and the terms of appointment of the Independent Directors are available on
the Company Website - prithvifx.com. It is hereby confirmed that in the opinion of the Board of
Directors, the Independent Directors fulfill the conditions specified in the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and are
independent of the management.

vii.Disclosure of Accounting Treatment In the preparation of the financial statements, the Company has
followed the Accounting Standards referred to in Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. The
significant accounting policies which are consistently applied are set out in the Notes to the Financial
Statements.

viii. Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutions
placement as specified under Regulation 32 (7A). Not Applicable

ix. Where the board had not accepted any recommendation of any committee of the board which is
mandatorily required, in the relevant financial year. Not Applicable

www.

Name of Director Category No of Shares/Convertible instruments held

Mr. K.N Deenadayalan

Mr. Mahavir Chand

Ms. Anuradha Jayaraman

Mr. Pavan Kumar Kavad

Mr. D. Suresh kumar

Independent Non-Executive Director

Independent Non-Executive Director

Independent Non Executive Women Director

Executive Whole Time Director

Non-Executive Director

NIL

NIL

NIL

st1988040 (As on 31  March 2019)

NIL
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x. Commodity price risk and Commodity hedging activities. Not Applicable

Board Committees:

1) Audit Committee

2) Nomination and Remuneration Committee

(Nomination and Remuneration Committee reconstituted in compliance with LODR regulations, as the
company triggered the applicability of corporate governance on 31st March 2019 only)

3) Stakeholders Relationship Committee

Meetings of Board Committees held during the financial year 2018-19 and Attendance

A. Audit Committee:
I. Composition of the Committee:

The Audit Committee comprises of Mr. K. N Deenadayalan, Ms. Anuradha Jayaraman, Mr. Pavan
Kumar Kavadas Members. Mr. K. N Deenadayalan (Non-Executive Independent Director) is the
Chairman of the Committee.

1

2

3

Mr. K. N Deenadayalan Independent Non-Executive Director

Independent Non-Executive DirectorMs. Anuradha Jayaraman

Whole Time Director (Executive Director)Mr. Pavan Kumar Kavad

1

2

3

Mr. Deenadayalan Kuppuswamy Narayanaswamy Independent Non-Executive Director

Independent Non-Executive DirectorMr. Mahavir Chand

Non-Executive DirectorMr. Suresh Kumar

1

2

3

Mr. Deenadayalan Kuppuswamy Narayanaswamy Independent Non-Executive Director

Whole Time Director (Executive Director)Mr. Pavan Kumar Kavad

Non-Executive DirectorMr. Suresh Kumar

Board Committees Audit Committee Stakeholders' Relationship
 Committee

Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee

Meetings held

Mr. K.N Deenadayalan

Number of Meeting and Directors' Attendance

Mr. Mahavir Chand

Ms. Anuradha Jayaraman

Mr. Pavan Kumar Kavad

Mr. D. Suresh kumar

3 3 4

NA NA 4

2 NA NA

4 4 NA

NA 3 4

4 4 5
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II. Meetings and Attendance during the financial year:

During the financial year 2018-19, 4 (four) meetings of the Audit Committee were held and the
details of meetings and attendance are given below.

I. Terms of reference of the Audit Committee:

The Audit Committee of the Company analyses the financial conditions and results of the
operation of the Company. It also reviews the significant Related Party Transactions, internal audit
reports, internal audit plan and performance of the internal auditors and statutory auditors. The terms
of reference of the Audit Committee inter alia includes the following:

a. Making recommendations for the appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of
auditors of the Company;

b. Review and monitor the auditor's independence and performance and effectiveness of the audit 
process;

c. Examination of the financial statement (including of the subsidiaries) and the Limited Review
Report/ Auditors' Report thereon;

d. Approval of any subsequent modification of the transactions of the Company with related parties;

e. Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments including that of the Subsidiary Companies;

f. Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary;

g. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

h. Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters.

B. Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

I. Composition of the Committee:

Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of Mr. K. N Deenadayalan, Mr. Mahavir
Chandand Mr. Suresh Kumar as Members. K. N Deenadayalan, (Non-Executive Independent
Director) is the Chairman of the Committee. All the Members in the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee are Non-Executive Directors.

II. Meetings and Attendance during the financial year: During the year under review, 5 (five)
meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee were held and the details of meetings and
attendance have been provided below:

Audit Committee

Sl.No Date of Meeting
Total number of Members
as on the date of meeting

Attendance
Number of Members attended % of total members

1

2

3

4

19.05.2018

18.08.2018

10.11.2018

02.02.2019

3

3

3

3

2

2

3

2

66.67

66.67

100

66.67
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III. Nomination and Remuneration Policy:

Your Company is having a well-structured Nomination and Remuneration policy which is readily available on

the website of the Company. You could refer the same by following the link: http://prithvifx.com.

(*Regulation 19 of LODR is applicable with effect from 01-04-2019 only)

IV. Criteria for the evaluation of the performance of the Non-Executive Directors and
Independent Directors:

The Company has framed a Nomination and Remuneration Policy in accordance with Section
178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 which provides for the evaluation of the performance of the
Directors. The evaluation of the performance of the Directors is made by a rating method, the criteria
of which includes inter alia the following:

1. Possession of the requisite expertise, experience, industry knowledge etc.
2. Time spent on discussions on strategic and general issues.
3. Monitoring the Company's internal controls.
4. Independence in true letter and spirit in the case of Independent Directors.
5. Demonstration of the highest levels of integrity.

V. Terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

The terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee inter alia includes the
following:

1.to review the overall compensation policy, service agreements and other employment conditions
of Managing/ Whole-time Director(s) and Senior Management (one level below the Board);
2. to help in determining the appropriate size, diversity and composition of the Board;
3. to recommend to the Board appointments/reappointments and removal of Directors/ KMP;
4. to frame a criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of
Directors;
5. to recommend to the Board the remuneration payable to the Directors;
6. to create an evaluation framework for Independent Directors and the Board;
7. to provide necessary reports to the Chairman after the evaluation process is completed by the
Directors;
8. to assist in developing a succession plan for the Board;
9. to assist the Board in fulfilling responsibilities entrusted from time-to-time;
10.to delegate any of its powers to any Member of the Committee or the Compliance Officer.

VI. Details of Directors' Remuneration including sitting fees:

Apart from the sitting fee paid to the Independent Non-Executive Directors, no other
remuneration is paid to the Directors of the Company. The Independent Non-Executive Directors
are paid sitting fees for attending the Board. The Non-Executive Directors including the
Independent Directors do not have any material pecuniary relationship or transactions with the
Company.

Sr. No. Date of Meeting
T o t a l  n u m b e r  o f  

M e m b e r s  a s  o n  t h e  
d a t e  o f  m e e t i n g

Attendance
Number of Members attended % of total members

19-05-2018

10-08-2018

02-02-2019

10-11-2018

05-01-2019

1

2

5

3

4

3 2

3 3

3 3

3 2

3 2

66.67

100

66.67

66.67

100
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Details of remuneration including sitting fees paid to Directors during the financial year 2018-19:

C. Stakeholders' Relationship Committee:

I. Composition of the Committee: Stakeholders' Relationship Committee comprises of
Mr. K.N Deenadayalan, Mr. Pavan Kumar Kavad and Mr. Suresh Kumar Kavad as Members.

All the Members of the Committee are Non- Executive Directors except Mr. Pavan Kumar Kavad and
Mr. K.N Deenadayalan, (Non-executive Independent Director) acts as the Chairman of the Committee.

Meetings and Attendance during the financial year: One meeting of the Stakeholders' Relationship
Committee was held during the financial year. The details of meeting and attendance are given
below:

II. Details of queries and grievances received from the Members and attended by the 
Company during the financial year 2018-2019 are given below:

D. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee: Not Applicable

Name of the Director salary Perquisites Sitting Fees Stock Options granted

Mr. K.N Deenadayalan

Mr. Mahavir Chand

Ms. Anuradha Jayaraman

Mr. Pavan Kumar Kavad

Mr. D. Suresh kumar

NIL

NIL

NIL

24,00,000

NIL

NIL NIL

NIL NIL

NIL NIL

NIL NIL

NIL NIL

56,000

10,000

14,000

NIL

10,000

Stakeholders' Relationship Com m ittee

Sl.No Date of M eeting
Total num ber of M em bers
as on the date of m eeting

Attendance
Number of Members attended % of total members

1

2

3

4

19.05.2018

18.08.2018

10.11.2018

02.02.2019

3

3

3

3

2

3

2

3

66.67

100

66.67

100

Pending as on 
1 April 2018

Received during
 the year

Solved during 
the year

Not solved to the 
satisfaction of the 
shareholders during 
the year

Pending as on 
31 March 2019

0 002 2
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3.General Body Meetings:

Details of General Meetings:
I.Details of the last three Annual General Meetings are given below:

II. Special Resolutions passed in the last three AGMs, with requisite majority:

III. Special Resolutions passed through postal ballot in the last three years, with 
requisite majority: NIL

As on the date of this report, the Company do not propose to pass any special resolution by 
way of Postal Ballot.

4. Means of Communication

Quarterly/half yearly results are disclosed to Stock Exchange and also published in daily
newspapers viz., Business Standard (all over India) and Makkal Kural (Vernacular). As per the
requirements of Regulation 46 of the Listing Regulations, the quarterly/half yearly results and the
press release issued annually are displayed on the Company's website www.prithvifx.com. The
Company provides information to the Stock Exchange as per the requirements of the Listing
Regulations. No presentations were made to institutional investors /analysts. The Company has a
designated e-mail address viz., investor.relations@prithvifx.com , exclusively for investor servicing.

Details of last three Annual General Meetings (AGM)

Meeting Financial year to 
which AGM relates Date & Time venue No of special 

Resolution Passed

23rd

22nd

21st

2017-18

2016-17

2015-16

th17  September 2018 

at 11:30 A.M.

st21   September 2017

at 11:30 A.M.

27th September,

2016 at 11 A.M

Namma Veedu Vasantha Bhavan, No.2,
Poonamallee High Road, Maduravoyal,
Varalakshmi Nagar, Opposite MGR University,
Chennai – 600 095

Namma Veedu Vasantha Bhavan, No.2,
Poonamallee High Road, Maduravoyal,
Varalakshmi Nagar, Opposite MGR University,
Chennai – 600 095

Namma Veedu Vasantha Bhavan, No.2,
Poonamallee High Road, Maduravoyal,
Varalakshmi Nagar, Opposite MGR University,
Chennai – 600 095

No Special 
Resolution
was passed. 

1

2

Financial year to which AGM relates Date of AGM Particulars

2017-18 17-09-2018 No Special Resolution was passed. 

2016-17 21-09-2017

1. Approval for Revision in managerial 
remuneration of Mr. Pavan Kumar Kavad
(DIN: 07095542), Whole Time Director 
of the Company.

2015-16 27-09-2016

1. Appo in tm ent of M r. Ashok Kum ar Kavad
as M anaging D irector 
2 . Au thority  g iven to the Board of D irectors 
of the Com pany and any com m ittee wh ich  
the Board  of d irectors m ay hereafter 
constitu te fo r the tim e be ing for excersing 
the powers conferred on  the Board o f D irectors 
by  this resolu tion  to determ ine the fee to  be 
charged from  m em ber(s) who requests delivery 
of any docum ent through a particu lar m ode.
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I. Details of Listing with Exchange & Stock Code:

II. Stock Market Price Data during the financial year 2018-19:

Incorporation Details
The Com pany is reg istered in the State of Tam ilnadu, India. 
The Corporate Identity Num ber (CIN) a llotted to the Com pany by the 
M inistry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) is L30006TN1995PLC031931

AGM Date 25-09-2019

Time & Venue 11. 30 AM, Hotel Ashoka, 47, Pantheon Rd, Egmore, Chennai, Tamil Nadu 600008

Dividend NIL

Dividend Payment Date NA

Financial Year 1 April 2018 to 31 March 2019

Listing on Stock Exchanges BSE Limited The listing fees for the financial year 2018-19 were duly paid to 
the BSE Limited within time.

Registrar to an issue and 
share transfer agents M/s. Integrated Registry Management Services Private Limited

Name and address of the Stock Exchange

Stock Code

ISIN allotted by depositories

BSE Ltd, Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers Dalal Street Mumbai- 400001

531688

INE621B01021

Month High Low

Apr 18

May 18

Jun 18

Jul 18

Aug 18

Sep 18

Oct 18

Nov 18

Dec 18

Jan 19

Feb 19

Mar 19

67.70

54.90

50.90

43.50

49.95

46.00

43.60

42.00

36.30

40.00

34.65

31.50

47.60

34.70

32.00

36.25

36.00

34.05

35.10

32.50

28.50

31.35

26.10

25.65

5. General Shareholder Information
  I.Basic Information:
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Source: This information is compiled from the data available on the website of BSE)
IV. Distribution of Shareholding as on 31 March 2019:

V. Shareholding Pattern as on 31 March 2019:

(Source: This information is compiled from the data available on the website of BSE)

VI. Share transfer system:
The Company has appointed M/s. integrated registry management services private limited, as its 

Registrar & Transfer Agents. 
Share transfers are processed and approved, subject to the receipt of all requisite documents. The
Company seeks to ensure that transfers, if any, are approved for registration within the stipulated
period. The transfer of shares in physical form is processed and completed by the Registrar & Transfer
Agent within a period of seven days from the date of receipt thereof provided all the documents are in
order.

In case of shares in electronic form, the transfers are processed by NSDL/CDSL through respective
Depository Participants. Pursuant to Regulation 40 (9) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, certificates on half-yearly basis have been issued by a Practicing
Company Secretary for due compliance of share transfer formalities by the Company.
Pursuant to SEBI (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018, certificates have also been
received from a Practicing Company Secretary for timely dematerialization of the shares of the
Company and for conducting a Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit on a quarterly basis for
reconciliation of the share capital of the Company.

VII. Dematerialization of Shares:
As on 31 March 2019, 95.58 % of shares of the Company have been dematerialized.Shares held in

demat and physical modes as on 31 March 2019 are as below:

Shareholding No. of Shareholders % No. of Shares %

001-500
501-1000
1001-5000
5001-10000
10001 & Above
Total

3996
213
126
18
12
4365

91.55
4.88
2.89
0.41
0.27
100

188225
147069
260065
133678
4770730
5499767

3.43
2.67
4.73
2.43
86.74
100.00

Category of 
shareholder

No. of 
shareholders

No. of fully paid 
up equity 

shares held

Total no.
shares held

Shareholding as 
a % of total no. 
of shares (calculated 
as per SCRR, 1957)As 
a % of (A+B+C2)

No. of 
Voting Rights

Total as a % 
of Total Voting

right

No. of equity 
shares held in 

dematerialized form

(A) Promoter &
Promoter Group

(B) Public

(C1) Shares 
underlying Drs

(C2) Shares held 
by Employee Trust

 ( c )  Non Promoter
-Non Public

Grand Total

3

4,362

4,365

39,56,922

15,42,845 15,42,845

54,99,767 54,99,767 54,99,767 52,56,675

39,56,922 71.95 71.95

28.05 28.05

0.00 0.00

0.00 0.00

100.00 100.00

0.00 0.00

39,56,922

15,42,845

39,56,922

12,99,753
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VIII. Other Disclosures:
I. Disclosures on Related Party Transactions: 

During the year, the Company did not enter into any transaction of material nature with its promoters,
the Directors or their relatives

II. Subsidiary Companies: NIL

III. Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties, strictures imposed on the
Company by Stock Exchange or SEBI, or any statutory authority, on any matter related to
capital markets, during the last three years: NIL

IV. Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy: 

The Company has adopted the Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy pursuant to which employees of
the Company can raise their concerns relating to fraud, malpractice or any other untoward activity or
event, if any, which is against the interests of the Company or society as a whole.

Adoption of Requirements of Regulations 17 to 27 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015:

The Company has complied with all applicable requirements of Regulations 17 to 27 of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015.

Website

The Company is maintaining a functional website where all material information about the Company
is shared. All information as specified in the clauses (b) to (i) of Sub-Regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015 is available in the
Company Website at http://www.prithvifx.com/. company's Annual Report is also available in a user-
friendly and downloadable form.

Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition 
and Redressal) Act, 2013

The Company has in place the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) policy in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been set
up to redress any complaint regarding sexual harassment.
The following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed off during the 
year 2018-19: 

 No. of complaints at the beginning of the year 2018-19 : NIL 
 No. of complaints received during the year 2018-19: NIL 
 No. of complaints disposed off during the year 2018-19 : NIL 
 No. of complaints at the end of the year 2018-19: NIL

A Separate Enclosure is made to bring awareness to the 
physical shareholders to mandatorily convert the shares 
to demat Mode of holding

Shareholding
% to total 
paid up share 
capital

NSDL 795684 11.47%

CDSL

Physical

Total

4460991

243092

5499767

81.11%

4.42%

100%
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CFO Certification: 

CFO of the Company gives quarterly/annual certification on financial reporting and internal 
controls to the Board in terms of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

stAs the company triggered the applicability of corporate governance on 31 March 2019, Certificate
on Corporate Governance pursuant to Schedule V and Regulation 34(3) and 53(f) of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 will be attached from the next year
onwards.

Declaration for compliance with the Code of Conduct:In accordance with Regulation 26 of the

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, this is to confirm that, all

the Directors and the Senior Management personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance to the

Code of Conduct for the financial year ended 31 March 2019.

A certificate from a Company Secretary in practice that none of the directors on the board of the

Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of

companies by the Board/ Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. The Certificate

from a Company Secretary in practice is annexed herewith as a part of the report.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Prithvi Exchange India Limited

Pavan Kumar Kavad

Whole Time Director

Date:10-08-2019

Place: Chennai
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ANNEXURE TO THE REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To The Members of 
Prithvi Exchange (India) Limited
No.11, East Spur Tank Road,
Chetpet, Chennai – 600031
Tamilnadu

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the
Directors of Prithvi Exchange (India) Limited, CIN: L30006TN1995PLC031931 and having its registered
office at No.11, East Spur Tank Road, Chetpet, Chennai – 600031, Tamilnadu (hereinafter referred to
as 'the Company'), produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in 
accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10 (i) of the Securities
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. In our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors
Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and
explanations furnished to us by the Company and its officers, we hereby certify that none of the
Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31 March 2019
have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory
Authority.

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the
responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of
the Company.

For V. Esaki and Associates Company Secretaries
               Sd/-

V. Esaki
                    Proprietor
               ACS No. 30353

Sl. No Name of the Director DIN Date of appointment 
in the Company

Mr. K. N. DEENADAYALAN

Mr. PAVAN KUMAR KAVAD

Mr. MAHAVIR CHAND

Ms. ANURADHA JAYARAMAN

Mr. SURESH KUMAR

1

2

3

4

5

02910246

07095542

00671041

00747419

06691575

21/08/2007

16/01/2015

27/07/2015

16/01/2015

22/01/2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF PRITHVI EXCHANGE (INDIA) LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of M/s Prithvi Exchange 
st(India) Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2019, the

Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in
Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the
standalone financial statements”). In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other

staccounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March,
2019, the profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.
Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone
financial statements.

key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most

significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These

matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a

whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these

matters.

We do not have any key audit matters that needs to be communicated in our report.
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Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report
Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Company's Annual
Report, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.
Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the
course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk 
of not detecting a material 

misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the 
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, 
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the 
results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial 
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books and proper returns adequate for the purposes of our
audit have been received from the branches not visited by us.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account and with the returns received from the branches not
visited by us.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2019
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2019
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions
of section 197 of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its standalone financial
position.

(ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.
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(iii) There has been delay in transferring unclaimed dividend of Rs 90,685/-for financial year
2010-2011, required to be transferred by the company to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
on or before 05th December 2018. The company has transferred the said unclaimed dividend on 04th
March, 2019 to the Investor Education and Protection Fund.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For DIYALI B AND ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No : 017740S

DIYALI B
Proprietrix
Membership No : 242354
Place : Chennai
Date : 25th May 2019

ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 (f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section
of our report to the members of M/s Prithvi Exchange (India) Limited of even date.)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under clause(i) of Sub-section 3
of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013(“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s Prithvi Exchange
(India) Limited (“the Company”) as of 31st March, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone
Ind AS financial statements of the company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards
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on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company: and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due
to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31st March,2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For DIYALI B AND ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No : 017740S
DIYALI B
Proprietrix
Membership No : 242354

Place : Chennai
Date : 25th May 2019
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements'
section of our report to the members of M/s Prithvi Exchange (India) Limited of even date.)

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate and according to the information and
explanation given to us during the course of our audit, we report that:

1. a. The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

b. During the year, the fixed assets of the Company have been physically verified by the
management and as informed, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our
opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and
the nature of its assets.

c. The company does not hold any immovable property.

2.a. The management, at reasonable intervals, has physically verified the inventories during the
year.

b. No material discrepancies were noticed during physical verification of inventory

3. The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnership or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the
Companies Act.

4. The Company has complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 
2013 in respect of loans, investments, guarantees and securities.

5. The Company has not accepted any deposits from public.

6. The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-section
(1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the activities carried on by the company.

7. (a) The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund,
Employees' State Insurance, income-tax, Goods and Service Tax, customs duty, cess and any other
statutory dues to the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanation given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of provident fund, employees' state insurance, income tax, Goods and Service Tax, customs
duty, cess  and any other material statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of 
more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of service tax,
sales tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax or Goods and Service Tax outstanding on account
of any disputes. However, according to information and explanations given to us, the following dues of
income tax have not been deposited by the Company on account of disputes:
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8. The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to financial institutions, banks,
governments or dues to debenture holders.

 9.  The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including 
debt instruments) and term loans during the year.

10. According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or on
the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

11. According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has paid the managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite
approvals mandated by the Provision of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

12.  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a 
Nidhi company. Accordingly, Paragraph 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

13. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the record
of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act
where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the standalone Financial Statements
as required by the applicable accounting standards.

14. The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year under review.

15. According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transaction with directors or persons connected
with him. Accordingly, Paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

16. The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act
1934.

For DIYALI B ANDASSOCIATES
CharteredAccountants
Firm Regn No : 017740S

DIYALI B
Proprietrix
Membership No : 242354

Place : Chennai
thDate : 25 May 2019

Name of the Statute Amount (In Lakhs) Period to which the 
amount relates

Forum where dispute
is pending

Income Tax INR 7.69 A.Y 1999-2000 Tribunal referred back the 
matter to the Assessing officer

Income Tax INR 4.46 A.Y 2000-2001 Tribunal referred back the 
matter to the Assessing officer
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PRITHVI EXCHANGE (INDIA) LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS PRITHVI SOFTECH LIMITED)

CIN: L30006TN1995PLC031931
Office: No. 11, East Spurtank Road, Chetpet

Chennai – 600 031 WEBSITE: www.prithvifx.com

ATTENDANCE SLIP
(To be presented at the entrance)

I hereby record my presence at the 24th Annual General Meeting on Wednesday, September 25, 2019
at 11.30 A.M at Hotel Ashoka, 47, Pantheon Road, Egmore, Chennai, Tamilnadu 600008.

Folio No. --------------------------------------- DP. ID No. ------------------------------ Client ID. -----------------

Name of the Member / proxy holder                                                      Signature ----------------------

1.
2.

Only Member/Proxy holder can attend the Meeting.
Member/Proxy holder should bring his/her copy of the Annual Report for reference at the Meeting
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PRITHVI EXCHANGE (INDIA) LIMITED

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS PRITHVI SOFTECH LIMITED)

CIN: L30006TN1995PLC031931

Office: No. 11, East Spurtank Road, Chetpet

Chennai – 600 031 WEBSITE: www.prithvifx.com

Form no. MGT - 11
Proxy form

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the Shareholder(s)……………………………………………………………………………………………

Registered Address…………………………………………………………………………………………………

Email Id……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………

F o l i o N o . / C l i e n t I d … … . . . . … … . . … … … D P I D … … … . . … … … … … … … … … . … …

I/We, being the member (s) of …..….....……. Shares of the above named company, hereby appoint

1. Name: ……………..…………..........................................E-mail Id: ...............................................

Address: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . . .. . .. .Signature: .... . .. . . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. . .. .

2. Name: ……………………….........................................E-mail Id: ...............................................

Address : . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

...................................................................................................Signature: ......................................

3. Name: ……………………….......................................................E-mail Id: ......................................

Address: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

...................................................................................................Signature: ......................................

or failing him

or failing him

thas my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 24 Annual General meeting of the
members of the Company, to be held on Wednesday, September 25, 2019 HotelAshoka, 47, Pantheon Rd, Egmore, Chennai,
Tamil Nadu 600008 at 11.30A. M and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet of the Company as at 31st March 2019, the Profit and Loss
Account for the year ended on that date and the Reports of the Directors andAuditors thereon.

2. To appoint Mr. Suresh Kumar (DIN: 06691575), director who is retiring by rotation and being eligible offers himself
for reappointment.

3. Reappointment of Mr. K.N Deenadayalan (DIN: 02910246) as an Independent Director of the Company for a second
term of five consecutive years , in terms of Section 149 of the CompaniesAct, 2013

Signed this…… day of……………… 2019

Signature of shareholder …………………………………

Signature of Proxy holder(s)………………………

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office 
of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

Affix
Revenue
Stamp
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